EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS
EXISTING IVIT ROVEMENTS
YARRA RANGES SHIRE COUNCIL
AND
······································
Santian 17D Community of (Document) A 4 1079
Section 17D Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978 Lease
(Non Retail)
(rion rieum)
DEDADTMENT OF ENVIDONMENT I AND WATED AND
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, LAND, WATER AND
PLANNING
II

CONTENTS

1	PART 1 – DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	1
	1.1 Definitions	1
	1.2 Interpretation	3
	1.3 Minister's delegations	5
2	DADT 2 EVOLUCION OF STATISTODY PROVISIONS	6
2	PART 2 - EXCLUSION OF STATUTORY PROVISIONS	
	2.2 Exclusion of Statutory Provisions	0
3	PART 3 - LEASE OF LAND	6
	3.1 Lease of Land for Term	6
	3.2 Landlord's Reservations	6
	3.3 Other Reservations	6
	3.4 Landlord's Exercise of Rights	
	3.5 Ownership of Tenant's Improvements	
	DADE A DENE	7
4	PART 4 - RENT	
	* •	
	4.2 Apportionment of Rent	/
5	PART 5 - RATES AND TAXES AND GST	7
	5.1 Tenant to pay Rates and Taxes	
	5.2 Tenant to Produce Receipts	
	5.3 Pro-rata apportionment	
	5.4 Goods and Services Tax	
6	PART 6 - COST OF SERVICES	8
7	PART 7 - COSTS	8
0	DADT 0 INTEDECT	0
8	PART 8 - INTEREST	
	8.1 Payment	
	8.2 Calculation	
	8.3 No Prejudice	9
9	PART 9 - USE OF PREMISES	9
	9.1 Tenant's Permitted Use and negative covenants	
	9.2 Tenant's positive covenants	
	9.3 No warranty as to use	
	9.4 To Let Signs and Inspection	
	9.5 Cost of alteration	
10	PART 10 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REQUIREMENTS	
	10.1 Compliance with Laws	11
	10.2 Landlord may comply with Laws if Tenant defaults	11
11	PART 11 - MAINTENANCE REPAIRS ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS	12
11	11.1 General repairing obligation	
	11.1 General repairing congation	
	11.2 Landiord's right of inspection	
	11.4 Landlord may enter to repair	
	11.4 Lanuiviu may thei to itpan	12

	11.5	Alterations to Premises	13
	11.6	Notice to Landlord of damage, accident etc	14
12	PART	12 - ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING	14
	12.1	No disposal of Tenant's interest	
	12.2	Deemed assignment on change of shareholding	
	12.3	Acceptance of Rent by Landlord	
	12.4	S.144 excluded	
13	PART	13 - INSURANCE AND INDEMNITIES	15
	13.1	Insurances to be taken out by Tenant	15
	13.2	Tenant's insurance obligations	15
	13.3	Non-vitiation of policies	15
	13.4	Exclusion of Landlord's liability	15
	13.5	Indemnities	16
14	PART	14 - DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION	
	14.1	Tenant to reinstate Premises	17
	14.2	Obligation to reinstate is absolute	
	14.3	Rent and Rates and Taxes	17
15	PART	15 - LANDLORD'S COVENANT	17
	15.1	Quiet Enjoyment	17
16	PART	16 - TERMINATION AND DEFAULT	17
	16.1	Events of Default	17
	16.2	Forfeiture of Lease	18
	16.3	Re-entry	19
	16.4	Landlord may rectify	19
	16.5	Waiver	
	16.6	Tender after determination	
	16.7	Essential terms	
	16.8	Damages for Breach	
	16.9	Repudiation by Tenant	
	16.10	Acts by the Landlord not to constitute forfeiture	
	16.11	Mitigation	20
17	PART	17 - DETERMINATION OF TERM	21
	17.1	Tenant to yield up	
	17.2	Tenant to continue pay rent etc	
	17.3	Tenant not to cause damage	
	17.4	Failure by Tenant to remove the Tenant's Improvements	
	17.5	Tenant to indemnify and pay Landlord's Costs	
	17.6	Condition at Termination	22
	17.7	Earlier breaches	22
18	PART	18 – MISCELLANEOUS	
	18.1	Notices	
	18.2	Overholding	
	18.3	Set-Off	
	18.4	Easements	
	18.5	Guarantee	
	18.6	Waiver	24

19	PART	T 19 – FURTHER TERM	24
	19.1	Option for new lease	24
	19.2	Terms of new lease	24
	19.3	Execution of extension of lease	25
	19.4	Guarantor to execute extension of lease or guarantee	25
20	PART	20 – BANK GUARANTEE	25
	20.1	Tenant to provide Bank Guarantee	25
	20.2	Return of Bank Guarantee	
	20.3	Assignment or sale does not affect guarantee	26
SCHI	EDULE 1		
SCHI	EDULE 2	- (RENT REVIEW)	
SCHI	EDULE 3	- FURTHER OBLIGATIONS	
APPE	ENDIX O	NE (PLAN OF LAND)	

BETWEEN THE LANDLORD whose name appears in Item 1 (Landlord)

AND THE TENANT whose name appears in Item 2 (Tenant)

RECITALS

- A The Land is reserved pursuant to Section 4 of the Act for the purpose set out in Item 13.
- B The Minister has appointed the Landlord as the Committee of Management of the Land and has power to enter into this Lease pursuant to Section 17D of the Act subject to the approval in writing of the Minister.
- C The Landlord has agreed to lease the Land to the Tenant pursuant to Section 17D of the Act subject to the conditions, covenants, reservations, restrictions and exceptions and at the Rent set out in this Lease.

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

1 PART 1 – DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 **Definitions**

In this document:

Act means the Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978

Authority includes any government, local government, statutory, public or other Person, authority, instrumentality or body having jurisdiction over the Land, the Premises or any part of it or anything in relation to it;

Bank Guarantee means an unconditional and irrevocable undertaking in a form acceptable to the Landlord given by a bank authorised under the provisions of *the Banking Act 1959* (Cth.) or an Act of the Parliament of Victoria;

Business Day means any day (except a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday) on which banks are open for business in Melbourne, Victoria;

Claim includes any claim, demand, remedy, suit, injury, damage, loss, Cost, liability, action, proceeding and right of action;

Clause means a clause of this Lease; ("sub-clause" has a similar meaning); a reference to a Clause followed by a number refers to the relevant Clause in this Lease;

Commencement Date means the date set out in Item 4;

Cost includes any cost, charge, expense, outgoing, payment or other expenditure of any nature whatever:

Crown means the Crown in right of the State of Victoria;

Default Rate means the rate for the time being fixed under section 2 of the *Penalty Interest Rates Act 1983*; if that rate ceases to be published then it means any rate substituted in its place;

Further Obligations means any obligations set out in Schedule 3;

Further Term means the further term or terms set out in Item 8:

GST means any consumption, goods and services or value added tax, by whatever name called, imposed, levied or collected by any Federal or State Government which operates at any time or times during the Term or any renewal or overholding of the Lease including, without limitation, GST as defined in the GST Act and any replacement tax;

GST Act means A New System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999;

Guaranteed Sum means the amount set out in Item 9;

Hazardous Materials includes any substance, material, thing, component or element which is hazardous, a contaminant or a pollutant to persons or property;

Insured Sum means the amount set out in Item 12;

Her Majesty means Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II and her heirs and successors;

Item means the relevant item in Schedule 1 to this Lease;

Land means the land described in Item 3 to a depth of 15 metres below the surface and all rights, easements and appurtenances usually and normally enjoyed with that land and all improvements, fixtures, fittings, plant, equipment and chattels listed in Item 15 of Schedule 1 together with any other improvements, fixtures, fittings, plant, equipment and chattels on it at the Commencement Date;

Landlord means the Landlord named in this Lease and the person for the time being entitled to the Lease reversion when the Lease ends;

Landlord's Agents means the employees, contractors, agents and any other Person appointed from time to time by the Landlord as agent of the Landlord;

Law includes any requirement of any statute, rule, regulation, proclamation, ordinance or local law, present or future, and whether State, Federal or otherwise;

Minister means the Minister having responsibility for the administration of the Act or such other Minister of the Crown or Authority to whom responsibility for this Lease may at any time be given;

Minister's Agents and Officers includes any person, committee or delegate (including any statutory authority or statutory body corporate or committee for the time being responsible for the administration, care and management of the Land) from time to time responsible for carrying out functions, including the functions of the Minister, under this Lease;

Name and Notice Address means the name and address in Item 11 as it may be changed from time to time;

Notice means any notice or other written communication;

Party means a party to this Lease and includes any Guarantor;

Permitted Use means the permitted use of the Land set out in Item 7;

Person includes any corporation and vice versa;

Premises means the Land and the Tenant's Improvements;

Proposed Work means the construction, alteration, addition, renovation, refurbishment, demolition, removal of or to any improvement on the Land;

Rates and Taxes means all existing and future rates (including any special rates or levies) taxes (including land tax on a single holding basis), duties, charges, assessments, impositions and outgoings whatsoever now or at any time imposed, charged or assessed on or against the Land or the Landlord or the Tenant or payable by the owner or occupier of the Land;

Rent means the annual Rent set out in Item 6;

Requirement includes any lawful Notice, order or direction received from or given by any Authority or pursuant to any Law, in writing or otherwise, and notwithstanding to whom such Requirement is addressed or directed but if not addressed to the Tenant then the Tenant must be given a copy;

Review Date means at the date or dates set out in Item 10.

Services means all services installed or to be installed and connected to the Premises including, without limitation, gas, electricity, telephone and telecommunication, water, sewerage and drainage;

Supply means the supply of any good, service or thing by either Party under this Lease.

Tenant means the Tenant named in this Lease and includes in the case of a:

- (a) corporation the Tenant, its successors and permitted assigns;
- (b) natural Person the Tenant, his executors, administrators and permitted assigns;

Tenant's Employees means each of the Tenant's employees, agents, contractors, invitees or others (whether with or without invitation), sublessees, licensees and concessionaires or others (whether expressly or impliedly) who may at any time be in or upon the Land;

Tenant's Improvements means those items listed in Item 16 of Schedule 1 and all buildings, structures, fixtures, fittings, plant, equipment, partitions, signs or other material or articles and chattels of all kinds which are at any time erected or installed by the Tenant in or on the Land;

Term means the term of this Lease set out in Item 5 commencing from and including the Commencement Date; and

this Lease or "the Lease" means this lease and includes all schedules, appendices, attachments, plans and specifications, annexures and exhibits to it.

1.2 Interpretation

(a) The singular includes the plural and vice versa;

- (b) A gender includes all genders;
- (c) An obligation imposed by this Lease on more than one Person binds them jointly and severally;
- (d) Every covenant by the Tenant includes a covenant by the Tenant to procure compliance with the covenant by each of the Tenant's Employees;
- (e) A reference to legislation includes a modification or re-enactment of it, a legislative provision substituted for it or amendment of it and a regulation, rule or statutory instrument issued under it;
- (f) This Lease must be interpreted so that it complies with all Laws applicable in Victoria. Any provision must be read down so as to give it as much effect as possible. If it is not possible to give a provision any effect at all, then it must be severed from the rest of the Lease. If any provision or part of it cannot be so read down, such provision or part shall be deemed to be void and severable and the remaining provisions of this Lease shall not in any way be affected or impaired;
- (g) Unless otherwise stated, no provision of this Lease limits the effect of any other provision of this Lease. "Including" and similar expressions are not and must not be treated as words of limitation;
- (h) A reference to the Land, Premises or any thing includes the whole and each part of it;
- (i) The Landlord and the Tenant agree that:
 - (i) the terms contained in this Lease constitute the whole of the agreement in respect of the Land and Premises between the Landlord and the Tenant and all previous negotiations and agreements are negatived;
 - (ii) no further terms are be implied or arise between the Landlord and the Tenant by way of collateral or other agreement made by or on behalf of the Landlord or by or on behalf of the Tenant on or before or after the execution of this Lease, and any implication or collateral or other agreement is excluded and negatived;
 - (iii) no information, representation or warranty by the Landlord or the Landlord's agents was supplied or made with the intention or knowledge that it would be relied on by the Tenant in entering into this Lease; and
 - (iv) no information, representation or warranty has been relied on by the Tenant in entering into this Lease.
- (j) Headings and the index to this Lease are for guidance only and do not affect the interpretation of this Lease;
- (k) If a reference is made to any Person, body or Authority and that person, body or Authority has ceased to exist, then the reference is deemed to be a reference to the Person, body or Authority that then serves substantially the same or equivalent objects as the Person, body or Authority that has ceased to exist;

- (l) Reference to the President of a Person, body or Authority must, in the absence of a President, be read as a reference to the senior officer or equivalent employee for the time being of the Person, body or Authority or such other Person fulfilling the duties of President;
- (m) A reference to "writing" or "written" and any words of similar import include printing, typing, lithography and any other means of reproducing characters in tangible and visible form, including any communication effected through any electronic medium if such communication is subsequently capable of reproduction in tangible or visible form;
- (n) A reference to "corporation" and any other words or expressions used or defined in the *Corporations Act 2001*, unless the context otherwise requires, has the same meaning that is given to them in the *Corporations Act 2001*;
- (o) This Lease is governed by Victorian law. The Parties irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of that State and courts of appeal from them. Except as expressly agreed in writing by both Parties or for an action required at a federal level, each Party waives any right it has to object to an action being brought in any court outside Victoria including, without limitation, by claiming that the action has been brought in an inconvenient forum or that those courts do not have jurisdiction;
- (p) If the day or last day for doing anything or on which an entitlement is due to arise is not a Business Day, the day or last day for doing the thing or date on which the entitlement arises for the purposes of this Lease shall be the next Business Day;
- (q) Each provision of this Lease continues to have full force and effect until it is satisfied or completed;
- (r) Where a word or phrase is defined, its other grammatical forms have a corresponding meaning; and
- (s) A reference to an agreement or a document is to that agreement or document as amended, novated, supplemented, varied or replaced from time to time except to the extent prohibited by this Lease.

1.3 Minister's delegations

- (a) Wherever this Lease refers to an action, consent, approval or other thing to be done by, or matter to be considered by the Minister, the reference to the Minister shall be deemed to include a reference to the Minister's Agents and Officers.
- (b) The Minister may appoint any person as the Minister's delegate to exercise all powers conferred by this Lease on the Minister expressly, including without limitation, the power to give any consent or approval pursuant to this Lease.
- (c) The Minister may change the appointment at any time.

2 PART 2 - EXCLUSION OF STATUTORY PROVISIONS

2.1 Moratorium

To the extent permitted by law, the application to this Lease or to any Party of any Law or any Requirement or any moratorium having the effect of extending or reducing the Term, reducing or postponing the payment of Rent or any part of it or otherwise affecting the operation of the terms of this Lease or its application to any Party is excluded and negatived.

2.2 Exclusion of Statutory Provisions

The covenants, powers and provisions implied in leases by virtue of the *Transfer of Land Act 1958* are expressly negatived.

3 PART 3 - LEASE OF LAND

3.1 Lease of Land for Term

The Landlord leases the Land to the Tenant for the Term.

3.2 Landlord's Reservations

The Landlord reserves the right for the Landlord and the Landlord's Agents to:

- (a) carry out any works that may be required to comply with any applicable Law or Requirement; and
- (b) create any registered or unregistered easement or other right over the Land as long as it does not adversely affect the Tenant's rights under this Lease;
- (c) enter the Land and the Premises for the purposes set out in this Clause.

3.3 Other Reservations

This Lease is granted subject to the following reservations:

- (a) the reservation to the Crown of all gold and minerals within the meaning of the *Mineral Resources Development Act 1990* and petroleum within the meaning of the *Petroleum Act 1958*, all of which are described as the "reserved minerals":
- (b) the reservation to the Crown of the rights of access for the purpose of searching for and obtaining the reserved minerals in any part of the Land;
- (c) the reservation to the Crown of the rights of access for any pipeline works and other purposes necessary for obtaining and conveying on and from the Land any of the reserved minerals obtained in any part of the Land; and
- (d) the right to resume the Land for mining purposes under Section 205 of the *Land Act 1958*.

3.4 Landlord's Exercise of Rights

Except in an emergency, the Landlord must give the Tenant reasonable notice of the Landlord's intended exercise of the rights set out in this Clause. The Landlord must only

exercise the rights at reasonable times and must minimise interference to the Tenant when doing so.

3.5 Ownership of Tenant's Improvements

The Tenant owns all of the Tenant's Improvements unless the Act requires any buildings and structures erected on the Land by the Tenant to be and to remain the property of the Landlord.

4 PART 4 - RENT

4.1 Tenant to pay Rent

The Tenant covenants to pay the Rent:

- (a) at the times and in the manner set out in Item 6 without demand by the Landlord;
- (b) without any abatement, deduction or right of set-off;
- (c) to the Landlord at the address set out in Item 14 or to any other address or in any other way the Landlord directs the Tenant by Notice.

4.2 Apportionment of Rent

If the Commencement Date is not the first day of a rent period, the first and last instalments of Rent will be apportioned on a pro-rata daily basis for the periods from:

- (a) the Commencement Date to the first day of the next rent period;
- (b) the first day of the last rent period of the Term until the date on which the Term expires.

5 PART 5 - RATES AND TAXES AND GST

5.1 Tenant to pay Rates and Taxes

The Tenant must pay the Rates and Taxes:

- (a) to the assessing Authority on time if assessed directly against the Tenant or the Land; but otherwise
- (b) to the Landlord by the date which is 10 Business Days before the due date for payment if the Landlord must pay the Rates and Taxes and has given the Tenant a copy of the notice at least 10 Business Days before then.

5.2 Tenant to Produce Receipts

The Tenant must produce receipts to the Landlord evidencing payment of the Rates and Taxes by the due date for payment if the Tenant is required to pay them to the assessing Authority.

5.3 Pro-rata apportionment

If necessary, the Rates and Taxes will be apportioned on a pro-rata daily basis at the beginning and at the end of the Term.

5.4 Goods and Services Tax

- (a) If GST is or will be or is purported to be payable on any Supply the Party receiving the Supply must pay the Party making the Supply a sum equal to any GST payable by the supplier for that Supply.
- (b) To the extent that one Party is required to reimburse the other Party for costs incurred by the other Party, those costs do not include any amount in respect of GST for which the Party is entitled to claim an input tax credit.
- (c) A Party's obligation to pay an amount under this Clause is subject to a valid tax invoice being delivered to that Party. For the avoidance of any doubt, the Rent and all other payments under this Lease are exclusive of GST.

6 PART 6 - COST OF SERVICES

The Tenant must pay Costs for all Services (including any special, additional or unusual Services separately supplied, metered, consumed or connected as appropriate in, to or on the Land or the Premises):

- (a) by direct payment on or before the due date if assessed directly against the Land or the Premises; but otherwise
- (b) by reimbursing the Landlord by the date which is 5 Business Days before the due date for payment if the Landlord has given a copy of the Notice to the Tenant at least 10 Business Days before then.

7 PART 7 - COSTS

The Tenant must pay to the Landlord all the Landlord's reasonable legal and other Costs including the costs of valuers, quantity surveyors and other consultants engaged by the Landlord of and incidental to:

- (a) the negotiation, preparation and execution of this Lease;
- (b) any consent required under this Lease;
- (c) any assignment or subletting for which the Landlord's consent is required by this Lease;
- (d) any variation, extension, surrender or termination of this Lease otherwise than by effluxion of time:
- (e) any default by the Tenant or the Tenant's Employees in observing or performing any covenants contained or implied in this Lease.

8 PART 8 - INTEREST

8.1 Payment

The Tenant must pay on demand interest at the Default Rate on any Rent or other moneys which the Tenant has not paid within 30 days of the due date for payment.

8.2 Calculation

Interest is to be calculated daily from the due date and is to continue until the overdue money is paid. The interest will be capitalised on the last day of each month and may be recovered in the same way as Rent in arrears.

8.3 No Prejudice

If the Landlord requires a Tenant to pay interest, it is without prejudice to any other rights, powers and remedies which the Landlord may have under this Lease or at law.

9 PART 9 - USE OF PREMISES

9.1 Tenant's Permitted Use and negative covenants

The Tenant must not:

- (a) use the Premises for any purpose other than the Permitted Use;
- (b) do anything in or on the Premises which in the reasonable opinion of the Landlord causes or may cause nuisance, damage, disturbance or danger to the Landlord or the occupiers or owners of any other property;
- (c) use or allow the use of any radio, television or other sound producing equipment at a volume that can be heard outside the Premises except with the prior written consent of the Landlord which is not to be unreasonably withheld but may be given conditionally;
- (d) affix any television or radio mast or antennae, satellite dish or any other communication device to any part of the Premises except with the prior written consent of the Landlord which is not to be unreasonably withheld but may be given conditionally;
- (e) write, paint, display, hang or affix any sign, advertisement, placard, name, flagpole, flag or notice on any part of the Premises except with the prior written consent of the Landlord which is not to be unreasonably withheld but may be given conditionally;
- (f) overload the floor, walls, roof or any other part of the Premises, or, bring onto or remove from the Premises any plant or heavy equipment which by reason of its weight or vibration in its operation or in any way is likely in the reasonable opinion of the Landlord to cause damage to any part of the Premises or the Services;
- (g) except to the extent that they are necessary for the Permitted Use and then only in compliance with any Law or Requirement and in such quantities as are reasonably appropriate, store Hazardous Materials on or in the Premises;
- (h) install any equipment or system in the Premises that overloads or may overload the electrical or other Services to the Premises:
- (i) use the Premises as a residence unless it is a Permitted Use;
- (j) use the Premises for an illegal purpose;

(k) burn any rubbish or waste on the Premises other than the burning of vegetation in accordance with all necessary permits.

9.2 Tenant's positive covenants

The Tenant at its Cost must:

- (a) at all times carry out the Permitted Use in a business like and reputable manner;
- (b) keep the Premises clean and not permit any accumulation of useless property or rubbish in them;
- (c) keep the Premises free of pests, insects and vermin;
- (d) provide the Landlord (and keep updated when it changes) with the name, postal address, e-mail address, telephone and facsimile transmission numbers of a person or persons to contact during and after business hours if an emergency arises which affects the Premises:
- (e) comply with the Landlord's reasonable operational requirements for the Services and not interfere with the Services;
- (f) on vacating the Premises, remove all lettering, signs, flagpoles, flags, and other distinctive marks from the Premises and make good any damage caused by the removal;
- (g) obtain, maintain and comply with all consents or approvals from all Authorities which from time to time are necessary or appropriate for the Permitted Use. The Tenant must not by any act or omission cause or permit any consent or approval to lapse or be revoked;
- (h) maintain documented risk management identification and treatment programs for the Premises and the Services;
- (i) arrange for the regular and efficient removal from the Premises of its refuse and rubbish;
- (j) the Tenant must if a notifiable infectious illness occurs in the Premises promptly give Notice to the Landlord and all relevant Authorities and thoroughly fumigate and disinfect the Premises to the satisfaction of the Landlord and all relevant Authorities;
- (k) undertake all fire protection works on the Land required by Law to the satisfaction of the Landlord and all relevant Authorities;
- (l) permit the Landlord or the Landlord's servants or agents with or without vehicles and equipment, workmen or others at all times to enter the Land for fire protection and suppression purposes;
- (m) comply with the further obligations, if any, set out in Schedule 3.

9.3 No warranty as to use

- (a) The Landlord gives no warranty (either present or future) that the Land or the Premises are fit for the Permitted Use.
- (b) The Tenant has entered into this Lease with full knowledge of and subject to any prohibitions or restrictions contained in any Law or any Requirement on how the Land or the Premises may be used.

9.4 To Let Signs and Inspection

The Landlord may after giving reasonable notice and at reasonable times:

- (a) place advertisements and signs on those parts of Land and Premises as are reasonable having regard to the interests of the Landlord and the Tenant where the Premises are available for lease if the Tenant does not exercise any option to renew this Lease for a Further Term:
- (b) by appointment with the Tenant, show prospective tenants through the Land and the Premises.

The Landlord in exercising rights under this Clause must endeavour to minimise any inconvenience to the Tenant.

9.5 Cost of alteration

Pay to the Landlord on demand the Cost reasonably incurred by the Landlord of any alteration to any Services, sprinkler or fire prevention equipment and installations (including alarms) which may become necessary because of the non-compliance of the Tenant or of the Tenant's Employees with any Requirements, including those of any Tenant's insurer of the Premises or any Tenant's fittings within the period required or, if no period is required, within a reasonable period to meet those requirements.

10 PART 10 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REQUIREMENTS

10.1 Compliance with Laws

- (a) The Tenant at its Cost must comply with and observe all Laws and Requirements relating to the Land, the Premises, the Services and the Permitted Use. If the Tenant receives any Notice from an Authority, the Tenant must immediately provide a complete copy of it to the Landlord;
- (b) Before complying with any Law or Requirement, the Tenant must:
 - (i) obtain the written consent of the Landlord which is not to be unreasonably withheld and;
 - (ii) observe the provisions of this Lease.

10.2 Landlord may comply with Laws if Tenant defaults

If the Tenant fails to do so, the Landlord may comply with any Law or Requirement referred to in this Clause either in part or whole. If the Landlord does this:

- (a) any Costs incurred by the Landlord must be paid or reimbursed to the Landlord by the Tenant;
- (b) it is without prejudice to any of the Landlord's other rights in respect of noncompliance by the Tenant with its obligations under this Lease.

11 PART 11 - MAINTENANCE REPAIRS ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS

11.1 General repairing obligation

- (a) The Tenant at its Cost during the Term and any extension or holding over must keep the Premises and the Services in good repair and condition and clean and tidy. For the avoidance of any doubt, the Tenant acknowledges that the Landlord will have no responsibility for any repairs or maintenance to the Premises and the Services;
- (b) Before carrying out any repairs or maintenance to the Premises, the Tenant must obtain the written approval of the Landlord and all relevant Authorities but the Tenant will not be required to obtain written or any form of approval from the Landlord for maintenance of a non-structural nature.

11.2 Landlord's right of inspection

The Landlord or the Landlord's Agents may enter the Premises and view the state of repair and condition of the Premises and Services:

- (a) in the presence of the Authorised Officer of the Tenant if required by the Tenant;
- (b) at reasonable times on giving to the Tenant reasonable notice in writing (except in the case of emergency when no notice is required).

11.3 Enforcement of repairing obligations

The Landlord may serve on the Tenant a Notice:

- (a) specifying any failure by the Tenant to carry out any repair, replacement or cleaning of the Premises or the Services which the Tenant is required to do under this Lease; and/or
- (b) require the Tenant to carry out the repair, replacement or cleaning within a reasonable time. If the Tenant does not comply with the Notice, the Landlord may elect to carry out such repair, replacement or cleaning and any Costs incurred must be paid by the Tenant when demanded by the Landlord.

11.4 Landlord may enter to repair

The Landlord, the Landlord's Agents and others authorised by the Landlord may at all reasonable times after giving the Tenant reasonable notice (except in the case of emergency when no notice is required) enter the Land and the Premises to carry out any works and repairs in the circumstances set out below. In doing so, the Landlord must endeavour not to cause undue inconvenience to the Tenant.

(a) The circumstances for entry are:

- (i) to carry out any repairs on or to the Premises or the Services, which the Landlord considers necessary or desirable or which relate to anything which the Landlord is obliged or entitled to do under this Lease;
- (ii) if an Authority requires any repair or work to be undertaken on or to the Premises or the Services which the Landlord is either required or in the Landlord's discretion elects to do and for which the Tenant is not liable under this Lease; and/or
- (iii) if the Landlord elects to carry out any repair work which the Tenant is required or liable to do under this Lease by any Law or by any Requirement but fails to do so within the time specified or otherwise allowed for that work to be done.

11.5 Alterations to Premises

- (a) The Tenant must not and must not permit any other person to carry out any Proposed Work without the Landlord's and the Minister's prior written consent which must not be unreasonably withheld or delayed;
- (b) In seeking the Landlord's and the Minister's consent the Tenant must submit plans and specifications of the Proposed Work for the approval of the Landlord together with a list of the Persons (if any) from or to whom the Tenant proposes to call a tender or award a contract for the Proposed Work;
- (c) the Landlord and the Minister may give consent subject to the Tenant satisfying the following requirements:
 - (i) any Proposed Work must be supervised by a Person approved by the Landlord;
 - (ii) any Proposed Work must be executed promptly and continuously in a proper and workmanlike manner, using the materials and by contractors or tradesmen approved by the Landlord, in accordance with all Laws and Requirements;
 - (iii) the Tenant must pay on demand all Costs incurred by the Landlord and the Minister in considering or inspecting the Proposed Work and its supervision, including the reasonable fees of architects, engineers or other building consultants reasonably engaged by or on behalf of the Landlord;
 - (iv) the Tenant must obtain and keep current and comply with all necessary approvals or permits from all Authorities necessary to enable any Proposed Work to be lawfully effected, and must on request by the Landlord produce for inspection by the Landlord copies of all such approvals and permits;
 - (v) on completion of the Proposed Work the Tenant must immediately obtain and produce to the Landlord, any unconditional certificates of compliance or of satisfactory completion issued by relevant Authorities and, a certificate by a consultant approved by the Landlord that the

Proposed Work has been carried out in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the Landlord.

11.6 Notice to Landlord of damage, accident etc

The Tenant must immediately give Notice to the Landlord of any:

- (a) damage however caused, accident to or defects in the Premises or the Services;
- (b) circumstances likely to cause any damage or injury occurring within the Premises of which the Tenant has actual or constructive notice;
- (c) any fault in the Services; or
- (d) Notice from any Authority.

12 PART 12 - ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

12.1 No disposal of Tenant's interest

The Tenant must not without the prior written consent of the Landlord and the Minister:

- (a) assign, transfer, sub-let, grant any licence, mortgage, encumber, charge or part with or share the possession of or otherwise deal with or dispose of the Tenant's estate or interest in the Land or any part of the Land or the Premises;
- (b) declare itself trustee of the Land or any part of the Land or of any legal or equitable estate or interest in the Land or the Premises.

12.2 Deemed assignment on change of shareholding

There is a deemed assignment under this Clause if the Tenant is a Corporation (other than an incorporated association) and there is any change in any of the following which results in a change in the effective control of the Tenant:

- (a) the membership of the Corporation or any holding Company of the Corporation;
- (b) the beneficial ownership of any shares in the capital of the Corporation or any holding Company of the Corporation; or
- (c) the beneficial ownership of the business or assets in the Corporation or part of it.

If any of these events occur then the Tenant must obtain the Landlord's written consent under this Clause. This does not apply in relation to the sale of shares in the Tenant or the Tenant's holding company that is listed on a recognised stock exchange.

12.3 Acceptance of Rent by Landlord

The acceptance by the Landlord of any Rent or other payment from any Person other than the Tenant does not constitute an acknowledgment by the Landlord that it recognises that person as the Authorised assignee or sub tenant.

12.4 S.144 excluded

Section 144 of the *Property Law Act 1958* does not apply to this Lease.

13 PART 13 - INSURANCE AND INDEMNITIES

13.1 Insurances to be taken out by Tenant

The Tenant must effect and maintain at the Tenant's Cost:

- (a) a standard public liability insurance policy endorsed to extend the indemnity under the policy to include the Tenant's liability under Clause 13.5. The policy must:
 - (i) be for an amount of not less than the Insured Sum or such higher amount as the Landlord may reasonably require in respect of any single occurrence; and
 - (ii) be on terms that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against the Landlord;
- (b) insurance for the Premises and all Tenant's property for their full replacement value; and
- (c) any other insurance reasonably required by the Landlord.

13.2 Tenant's insurance obligations

The Tenant must:

- ensure that all policies of insurance effected by the Tenant pursuant to this Clause are taken out with an insurance office or company authorised by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority to conduct new or renewal insurance business in Australia including policies underwritten by Lloyd's of London or otherwise approved by the Landlord.
- (b) by 30 July in each year of the Term, produce to the Landlord a certificate of currency; and
- (c) pay all premiums and other money payable in respect of the insurance policies when they become due and payable.

13.3 Non-vitiation of policies

The Tenant must not do anything in, to or on the Premises and must use its best endeavours not to allow anything to be done which may vitiate or render void or voidable any Tenant's insurances or any condition of any insurance taken out by the Landlord of which the Tenant has been made aware in respect of the Premises or any property in or on it.

13.4 Exclusion of Landlord's liability

(a) In the absence of any negligence or deliberate act or omission or material breach of this Lease by the Landlord or the Landlord's Agents, the Tenant acknowledges that all property which may be in or on the Premises will be at the sole risk of the Tenant and the Landlord will not be liable for any Claim that the Tenant or the Tenant's Employees or any Person claiming by, through or under the Tenant may incur or make or any which arises from:

- (i) any fault in the construction or state of repair of the Premises or any part of it; or
- (ii) the collapse of the Premises irrespective of the cause; or
- (iii) any defect in any Services; or
- (iv) the flow, overflow, leakage, condensation or breakdown of any water, air-conditioning, gas, oil or other sources of energy or fuel, whether from the roof, walls, gutter, downpipes or other parts of the Premises.
- (b) In the absence of any negligence or deliberate act or omission or material breach of this Lease by the Landlord or the Landlord's Agents, the Tenant agrees that the Landlord will not be responsible for and releases the Landlord, the Crown and the Landlord's Agents from liability in respect of any:
 - (i) Claim relating to any property of the Tenant or any other Person in or on the Premises or any part of it however occurring; or
 - (ii) death, damage or injury to any Person or property in on or under the Premises or on any land near it suffered as a direct consequence of the construction, operation, presence or maintenance of the Premises and including, without limitation, damage or injury to any person or property resulting from any collision with or the collapse of the Premises.

13.5 Indemnities

In the absence of any negligence or deliberate act or omission or material breach of this Lease by the Landlord or the Landlord's Agents and Officers and despite:

- (a) any Claims having resulted from anything which the Tenant may be authorised or obliged to do under this Lease; and/or
- (b) at any time any waiver or other indulgence having been given to the Tenant in respect of any obligation of the Tenant under this Clause,

the Tenant will indemnify and keep indemnified the Landlord, the Landlord's Agents and the Crown from and against all Claims for which any of them will or may be or become liable, during or after the Term, in respect of or arising from:

- (i) any cause whatever in respect of damage or injury to the Premises, to any property or to any Person or the death of any Person inside or outside the Premises caused or contributed to by any neglect or default of the Tenant or the Tenant's Employees under this Lease or by the use of the Premises by the Tenant or by the Tenant's Employees including, without limitation, injury or death to any Person or property resulting from any collision with or collapse of the Premises;
- (ii) the negligent or careless use or neglect of the Services and facilities of the Premises by the Tenant or the Tenant's Employees or any other Person claiming through or under the Tenant or of any trespasser while such trespasser is in or on the Premises caused or contributed to by any default or negligent act or omission of the Tenant;

- (iii) overflow or leakage of water (including rain water) or from any Services whether originating inside or outside the Premises caused or contributed to by any act or omission on the part of the Tenant or the Tenant's Employees or other Person claiming through or under the Tenant;
- (iv) failure of the Tenant to give Notice to the Landlord of any defect in any of the mechanical or any other Services in the Premises within a reasonable time of the Tenant becoming aware of it; and
- (v) damage to plate, float and other glass caused or contributed to by any act or omission on the part of the Tenant or the Tenant's Employees.

14 PART 14 - DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION

14.1 Tenant to reinstate Premises

If the Premises or any part of them are at any time damaged or destroyed by any disabling cause then the Tenant must expeditiously re-instate the Premises and make them fit for the occupation and use by the Tenant as if it was Proposed Work.

14.2 Obligation to reinstate is absolute

The Tenant's obligation under Clause 14.1 to reinstate the Premises applies irrespective of how the damage and destruction occurred and irrespective of whether any policy of insurance effected for the Premises is avoided or payment refused or reduced.

14.3 Rent and Rates and Taxes

The Tenant must continue to pay the Rent and the Rates and Taxes even if the Premises are destroyed or damaged.

15 PART 15 - LANDLORD'S COVENANT

15.1 Quiet Enjoyment

If the Tenant pays the Rent and observes and performs in a timely fashion the covenants and conditions on its part contained in this Lease, the Tenant may occupy and enjoy the Land during the Term without any interruption by the Landlord or by any Person claiming through the Landlord except as provided in this Lease.

16 PART 16 - TERMINATION AND DEFAULT

16.1 Events of Default

The following are Events of Default:

- (a) if the Rent or any other money payable under this Lease is not paid within 30 days of the due date for payment whether legally demanded or not;
- (b) if the Tenant at any time fails to perform or observe any of its obligations under this Lease;
- (c) if the Tenant or the Guarantor are companies then if either the Tenant or the Guarantor:

- (i) enter into any compromise or arrangement with any of its creditors or if an application is made to any court for an order summoning a meeting of creditors; or
- (ii) has a receiver or receiver and manager or administrator or controller appointed of any of its assets; or
- (iii) is wound up or dissolved or notice is given of intention to propose a resolution for winding up or an order is made or resolution passed or an application is made for winding up or dissolution; or
- (iv) has a resolution passed by the directors that in their opinion the company can no longer continue its business; or
- (v) calls a meeting of its creditors pursuant to the *Corporations Act 2001*; or
- (vi) is placed under official management or if the members determine to convene a meeting of creditors for the purpose of placing the company under official management; or
- (vii) has an inspector appointed pursuant to the Australian Securities and Investments Commission Act 2001; or
- (viii) is unable to pay its debts as and when they fall due; or
- (ix) makes an assignment for the benefit of or enters into an arrangement or composition or a moratorium whether formal or informal with its creditors or financiers; or
- (x) has a provisional liquidator or a liquidator by any means appointed;
- (d) if any execution exceeding ten thousand dollars is issued, levied or enforced against the Tenant or the Guarantor or on any of the assets of the Tenant or the Guarantor unless such execution is fully paid or satisfied within seven days from the date of the issue, levy or enforcement, or appropriate legal proceedings to invalidate the execution are taken within seven days of the issue, levy or enforcement; and
- (e) if the Tenant or the Guarantor is a natural person and becomes or is made bankrupt or makes any assignment of his estate or any part of it for the benefit of creditors or otherwise seeks relief under or takes advantage of any Law for the time being in force relating to bankruptcy or insolvent debtors or causes or permits his goods to be levied on or under any execution or other legal process.

16.2 Forfeiture of Lease

If an Event of Default occurs the Landlord may, without prejudice to any other Claim which the Landlord has or may have against the Tenant or any other Person at any time re-enter into and upon the Land or any part of it in the name of the whole and thereupon this Lease will be absolutely determined.

16.3 Re-entry

The right of re-entry for breach of any covenant or condition to which section 146(1) of the *Property Law Act 1958* applies must not be exercised until the expiration of 30 days after the Landlord has served on the Tenant the notice required pursuant to that section.

16.4 Landlord may rectify

If the Tenant is in default under this Lease and fails to commence to rectify that default within 7 days of the Landlord notifying the Tenant in writing of that default and requiring its rectification or, having commenced, fails to expeditiously complete that rectification within a reasonable time, the Landlord may, but will not obliged to, remedy at any time without further notice any default by the Tenant under this Lease. If the Landlord so elects all reasonable Costs incurred by the Landlord (including legal costs and expenses) in remedying the default will constitute a liquidated debt and must be paid by the Tenant to the Landlord on demand.

16.5 Waiver

- (a) The Landlord's failure to take advantage of any default or breach of covenant by the Tenant will not be or be construed as a waiver of it, nor will any custom or practice which may grow up between any of the Parties in the course of administering this Lease be construed to waive or to lessen the right of the Landlord to insist upon the timely performance or observance by the Tenant of any covenant or condition of this Lease or to exercise any rights given to the Landlord in respect of any such default;
- (b) A waiver by the Landlord of a particular breach is not deemed to be a waiver of the same or any other subsequent breach or default;
- (c) The demand by the Landlord for, or subsequent acceptance by or on behalf of the Landlord of, Rent or any other money payable under this Lease will not constitute a waiver of any earlier breach by the Tenant of any covenant or condition of this Lease, other than the failure of the Tenant to make the particular payment or payments of Rent or other moneys so accepted, regardless of the Landlord's knowledge of any earlier breach at the time of acceptance of such Rent or other moneys.

16.6 Tender after determination

If the Landlord accepts money from the Tenant after the Landlord ends this Lease the Landlord may (in the absence of any express election of the Landlord) apply it:

- (a) first, on account of any Rent and other moneys accrued and due under this Lease but unpaid at the date the Lease is ended; and
- (b) secondly, on account of the Landlord's Costs of re-entry.

16.7 Essential terms

The Landlord and the Tenant agree that each of the following covenants by the Tenant are essential terms of this Lease:-

(a) to pay the Rent;

- (b) to keep the Premises open for use;
- (c) to carry on the Permitted Use;
- (d) to comply with Laws and Requirements;
- (e) subject to this Lease, to repair and maintain and, if necessary, reinstate or demolish the Tenant's Improvements;
- (f) not to assign this Lease or sub-let the Land or any part of it;
- (g) to take out and keep current those insurances required to be taken out by the Tenant;
- (h) to pay or reimburse Rates and Taxes.

16.8 Damages for Breach

The Tenant covenants to compensate the Landlord for any breach of an essential term of this Lease. The Landlord may recover damages from the Tenant for such breaches. The Landlord's entitlement under this Clause is in addition to any other remedy or entitlement to which the Landlord is entitled (including to terminate this Lease).

16.9 Repudiation by Tenant

- (a) The Tenant covenants to compensate the Landlord for any loss or damage suffered by reason of the Tenant's conduct (whether acts or omissions):
 - (i) constituting a repudiation of this Lease or of the Tenant's obligations under this Lease; or
 - (ii) breaching any Lease covenants.
- (b) The Landlord may recover damages against the Tenant in respect of repudiation or breach of covenant for the loss or damage suffered by the Landlord during the entire term of this Lease.

16.10 Acts by the Landlord not to constitute forfeiture

The Landlord's entitlement to recover damages shall not be affected or limited if any of the following events occur:-

- (a) the Tenant abandons or vacates the Land; or
- (b) the Landlord elects to re-enter the Land or to terminate the Lease; or
- (c) the Landlord accepts the Tenant's repudiation; or
- (d) the Parties' conduct (or that of any of their servants or agents) constitutes a surrender by operation of law.

16.11 Mitigation

Nothing in this Clause will operate to relieve the Landlord of any obligation which would otherwise apply to mitigate any loss or damage suffered by the Landlord.

17 PART 17 - DETERMINATION OF TERM

17.1 Tenant to yield up

When this Lease ends the Tenant at its Cost, if required by the Landlord must remove the Tenant's Improvements in a proper and workmanlike manner in compliance with the requirements of all Authorities and to the satisfaction of the Landlord. If the Landlord does not require the Tenant to remove the Tenant's Improvements those improvements that have not vested in the Landlord by operation of Law will revert to and become the absolute property of the Crown (except for the Tenant's trade fixtures, fittings and chattels) without any payment or compensation.

17.2 Tenant to continue pay rent etc

If the Tenant is required to remove the Tenant's Improvements the Tenant must continue to pay the Rent, the Rates and Taxes and all other money payable under this Lease until it has demolished and removed the Tenant's Improvements.

17.3 Tenant not to cause damage

- (a) The Tenant must not cause or contribute to any damage to the Land in the demolition and removal of the Tenant's Improvements.
- (b) If the Tenant causes any such damage in the demolition and removal of the Tenant's Improvements, the Tenant must make good any such damage and must leave the Land in a condition that is acceptable to the Landlord and all Authorities.
- (c) If the Tenant fails to do so within a reasonable time, the Landlord may make good any such damage at the Cost of and as agent for the Tenant and recover from the Tenant the reasonable cost to the Landlord of doing so as a liquidated debt payable on demand.

17.4 Failure by Tenant to remove the Tenant's Improvements

If the Tenant fails to remove the Tenant's Improvements in accordance with this Clause or if the Landlord re-enters the Land, the Landlord at the Landlord's option (without prejudice to any action or other remedy which the Landlord has) may:

- (a) demolish and remove the Tenant's Improvements; and
- (b) without being guilty of any manner of trespass, cause any of the Tenant's property to be removed and stored in such manner as is reasonable at the risk and at the Cost of Tenant and/or at the option of the Landlord sell it as the attorney of the Tenant and appropriate the proceeds of sale in payment of any Rent or other money owing by the Tenant to the Landlord and pay any residue without interest to the Tenant; or
- (c) treat the Tenant's property as if the Tenant had abandoned its interest in it and it had become the property of the Landlord, and deal with it in such manner as the Landlord thinks fit without being liable in any way to account to the Tenant for them.

17.5 Tenant to indemnify and pay Landlord's Costs

The Tenant must:

- (a) indemnify and keep indemnified the Landlord in respect of the reasonable cost of the removal and storage of the Tenant's property, the cost of demolishing and removing the Tenant's Improvements that the Tenant was required to remove and also in respect of all Claims which the Landlord may suffer or incur at the suit of any Person (other than the Tenant) claiming an interest in the Premises or the Tenant's property by reason of the Landlord acting in any manner permitted in this Clause; and
- (b) pay to the Landlord as a liquidated debt payable on demand any reasonable Costs incurred by the Landlord in exercising its rights pursuant to this Clause, including any excess of Costs over moneys received in disposal of the Tenant's property pursuant to the Landlord's rights contained in Clause 17.4 except to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of the Landlord.

17.6 Condition at Termination

At the end of this Lease the Tenant must return the Premises to the Landlord in the condition required by this Lease.

17.7 Earlier breaches

The ending of this Lease does not prejudice or affect any rights or remedies of the Landlord against the Tenant in respect of any earlier breach by the Tenant of any Lease covenants and conditions.

18 PART 18 – MISCELLANEOUS

18.1 Notices

- (a) Any Notice served or given by either Party pursuant to this Lease will be valid and effectual if signed by either Party or by any director, alternate director, secretary, executive officer, attorney, managing agent, Authorised Officer or solicitors for the time being of that Party or any other Person nominated from time to time by that Party.
- (b) Each Party must immediately provide the other Party with a Notice containing full particulars of the address and facsimile information of the Party giving the Notice and must update such notice in the event of any change.
- (c) Any Notice required to be served or which the Landlord may elect to serve on the Tenant shall be sufficiently served if:
 - (i) served personally
 - (ii) sent by facsimile transmission
 - (iii) forwarded by prepaid security post to the Tenant at its address in this Lease.
- (d) Any Notice required to be served on the Landlord shall be sufficiently served if:

- (i) served personally
- (ii) sent by facsimile transmission
- (iii) forwarded by prepaid security post addressed to the Landlord to the Name and Notice Address.

All such Notices must be addressed to the Landlord at that address or at such other address as the Landlord from time to time nominates.

- (e) Any Notice is deemed to have been duly served if given:-
 - (i) by post, two Business Days after the day it was posted;
 - (ii) by facsimile, at the time of transmission to the Party's facsimile number unless the time of dispatch is later than 5.00 p.m. at the place to which the facsimile transmission is sent in which case it shall be deemed to have been received at the commencement of business on the next Business Day in that place. A copy of any Notice sent by facsimile transmission must also on the date of dispatch be sent by mail to the Party to whom it was sent by facsimile transmission;
 - (iii) personally, on the date of service.

18.2 Overholding

If the Tenant continues in occupation of the Land after the Term has expired without objection by the Landlord:

- (a) the Tenant will be deemed a tenant on the terms of this Lease from month to month for a period not exceeding the period permitted by the Act (if any) at a rent to be agreed and failing agreement at a rent to be determined by a qualified valuer acting as an expert and not as an arbitrator and his costs must be paid equally by the Parties;
- (b) either Party may end the Lease by giving to the other Party at any time one month's Notice.

18.3 Set-Off

If the Tenant defaults in the payment of the Rent, the Rates and Taxes or any other money payable under this Lease to the Landlord or any Authority, the Landlord may set-off that amount against any moneys which may from time to time be payable by the Landlord to the Tenant on any account whatsoever but any set-off will not relieve the Tenant from its default for any non-payment of the Rent, the Rates and Taxes or other moneys under this Lease.

18.4 Easements

The Landlord may grant rights of support and enter into any arrangement or agreement with any party with an interest in any adjacent land or with any Authority as the Landlord thinks fit for the purpose of:

(a) public or private access to the Land; or

- (b) support structures erected on adjoining land;
- (c) the provision of Services.

The Landlord must not exercise any rights under this Clause if it substantially and permanently derogates from the enjoyment of the rights of the Tenant under this Lease.

18.5 Guarantee

If a Guarantee and Indemnity is annexed to this Lease, the Tenant must on the same date as the execution of this Lease procure its execution by the Guarantors named in it and deliver the executed Guarantee and Indemnity to the Landlord. If that Landlord elects, this Lease will not take effect until the Guarantee and Indemnity has been properly executed by the Guarantors and delivered to the Landlord.

18.6 Waiver

No waiver by one Party of a breach by or on behalf of the other Party of any obligation, provision or condition of this Lease expressed or implied shall operate as a waiver to or of any other breach of the same or any other obligation, provision or condition of this Lease expressed or implied.

19 PART 19 – FURTHER TERM

19.1 Option for new lease

The Landlord must grant the Tenant and the Tenant must take a new lease for the next Further Term if:

- (a) the Tenant gives the Landlord a renewal Notice not more than six months or less than three months before the Term expires;
- (b) there is no unremedied default of which the Landlord has given the Tenant written notice:
- (c) the Tenant has not persistently defaulted under this Lease throughout its Term and the Landlord has not given the Tenant Notices of the defaults; and
- (d) the Tenant does not default under this Lease after giving the Landlord the renewal Notice.

19.2 Terms of new lease

The new lease will:

- (a) commence on the day after the Term expires;
- (b) be at an initial annual Rent from the commencement of the Further Term determined in the manner set out in this Lease and the Second Schedule; and
- (c) be on the terms and conditions contained in this Lease including any provision for the review of Rent but not including any provision for renewal if there are no Further Terms.

19.3 Execution of extension of lease

The Landlord and the Tenant, at the Landlord's option, must execute either a new lease or an extension of lease to be prepared at the direction of the Landlord and at the Tenant's Cost.

19.4 Guarantor to execute extension of lease or guarantee

- (a) If the Tenant is a corporation, then the Tenant must procure the Guarantor to execute a guarantee of the Tenant's obligations under the new lease.
- (b) The Landlord does not have to grant the new lease if the Tenant does not procure the Guarantor to execute the guarantee in accordance with the preceding sub-Clause.

20 PART 20 – BANK GUARANTEE

20.1 Tenant to provide Bank Guarantee

If asked to do so by the Landlord, in order to secure the performance of the obligations of the Tenant under this Lease the Tenant must procure in favour of the Landlord a Bank Guarantee for the Guaranteed Sum. The following provisions apply to the Bank Guarantee:-

- (a) The Bank Guarantee will remain in force until the bank is notified in writing by the Landlord that it is no longer required.
- (b) The Bank Guarantee must be provided to the Landlord and come into effect on the Commencement Date;
- (c) If the Tenant is in breach of or fails to perform its obligations under this Lease the Landlord may, without prejudice to all other rights and remedies available to it, draw down the whole or any part of the Bank Guarantee and apply the proceeds drawn down to remedy or assist in remedying and to compensate the Landlord for that default and to assist the Landlord in exercising any or all of the Landlord's rights and remedies under this Lease;
- (d) If the Landlord is entitled to exercise any rights and remedies under this Lease the whole of the Bank Guarantee or such of it remaining may be drawn down and the amount deposited in an interest bearing bank account in the name and under the control of the Landlord and the amount together with interest applied to remedy or assist in remedying the default and to compensate the Landlord for the reasonable loss, cost, expense and damage resultant upon the Tenant's default and the Landlord having to exercise its rights and remedies and to assist in the exercise of any rights and remedies under this Lease;
- (e) The Bank Guarantee must require the bank to pay to the Landlord the Guaranteed Sum or such part of the Guaranteed Sum which has not already been paid to the Landlord without any form of deduction, counterclaim or set off whatsoever on receipt by the bank of a copy of a notice of default certified by or on behalf of the Landlord or its solicitors and without reference or regard to the Tenant or any communication or direction given by the Tenant to the bank to the contrary. The bank must have no responsibility to investigate the entitlement of the Landlord to

terminate or seek specific performance of this Lease or demand the payment of any money under this Lease.

20.2 Return of Bank Guarantee

The Landlord must return the Bank Guarantee to the Tenant when this Lease comes to an end and the Tenant has no outstanding obligations under this Lease or liability or potential liability in damages for any breach or non-performance of any obligations under this Lease.

20.3 Assignment or sale does not affect guarantee

The Landlord will not be deemed to have waived or relinquished any right under the Bank Guarantee if the Tenant assigns this Lease. If that occurs, the Bank Guarantee will remain in full force and effect as if it had been provided by the assignee and it will be read accordingly. The Landlord may, as a condition of assignment, require the assignee to provide an equivalent replacement Bank Guarantee and if that occurs, the Landlord must return the Bank Guarantee provided by the Tenant assigning this Lease.

EXECUTED as a deed.

Signed on behalf of the YARRA RANGES SHIRE COUNCIL by an officer authorised to enter into this agreement in the presence of:)))
	Executive Officer Property & Facilities Management
Witness	
Name of Witness	
THE COMMON SEAL of	
Secretary	President
Name of Secretary (print)	Name of President (print)

MINISTERIAL ATTESTATION

Under Section 17D(4)(c) of the *Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978* I (*full name and title*) in the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning as delegate of the Minister for Environment, Climate Change and Water hereby approve the covenants, exceptions, reservations and conditions contained therein.



SCHEDULE 1

1	LANDLORD:	YARRA RANGES SHIRE COUNCIL
2	TENANT:	
3	LAND:	Hoddles Creek Hall, located at 630 Gembrook- Launching Place Road, Hoddles Creek, as shown red cross hatched on the plan attached at Appendix 1
4	COMMENCEMENT DATE:	
5	TERM:	5 Years
6	RENT:	\$ per annum plus GST payable annually in advance.
		The Rent shall be increased on the Rent Review Dates by 3% annually.
7	PERMITTED USE:	
8	FURTHER TERM:	Nil
9	GUARANTEED SUM:	NA
10	REVIEW DATE(S):	Annually on the anniversary of commencement.
11	NAME AND NOTICE ADDRESS:	Landlord: Yarra Ranges Shire Council, 15 Anderson Street, Lilydale, Vic, 3140. (Postal: PO Box 104, Lilydale, Vic, 3140)
		Tenant:
		······································
12	INSURED SUM:	\$10 Million
13	RESERVATION:	Part of CA 67C, Parish of Woori Yallock, being Crown land permanently reserved for Public Recreation by Order in Council 6 February 1929 and published in the Government Gazette 13 February 1929, p. 819
14	PAYMENT ADDRESS:	Yarra Ranges Council, PO Box 105, Lilydale, Vic, 3140
15	LANDLORD'S IMPROVEMENTS:	Hall, water tanks and internal fixtures and fittings.



SCHEDULE 2

(RENT REVIEW)

Deleted



SCHEDULE 3

FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

1. Hire Agreement

1.1 For the purposes of this Special Condition:

Hire Agreement means a hire agreement between the Tenant and a third party to temporarily use the Premises on the terms and conditions set out in this Lease.

Hire Fee means the fee payable by the third party to the Tenant under the Hire Agreement for the use of the Premises.

- 1.2 The Tenant may only enter into a Hire Agreement if it obtains the prior written consent of the Council to the proposed Hire Agreement.
- 1.3 The Council and the Tenant acknowledge and agree that the Hire Agreement may provide for the Tenant to charge a Hire Fee provided that the Tenant applies the Hire Fee towards maintaining the Premises, or promoting its objects.

2 Use of Common Areas

2.1 Definitions

In this Special Condition:

Common Area means the drive way and car parking areas of the adjoining Edwin Spencer Burr Reserve,

2.2 Grant of Licence

The Council grants the Tenant a licence to use the Common Area for the Term starting on the Commencement Date:

- 2.2.1 in common with the Council and all persons authorised by the Council;
- 2.2.2 in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Lease, and the terms contained in Special Condition 2.3; and
- 2.2.3 subject to Special Condition 2.4.

2.3 Terms of Licence

The Tenant must:

- 2.3.1 only use the Common Area for the purposes of access to the Premises and car parking;
- 2.3.2 keep the Common Area clean and tidy;
- 2.3.3 not obstruct the Common Area:

- 2.3.4 pay or refund to the Council, within 14 days of demand, such proportion as the Council determines in its absolute discretion of:
 - (a) all rates, taxes (including land tax assessed on the basis that the Common Area is the only land owned by the Council) and all other charges and levies assessed in connection with the Common Area; and
 - (b) all electricity used in connection with the Common Area.

This Special Condition 2.3 is an essential term of this Lease.

2.4 End of Licence

The Licence granted to the Tenant pursuant to this Special Condition automatically terminates when this Lease ends.

3. TENANT'S FURTHER OBLIGATIONS:

- 3.1 The Landlord and the Tenant hereby agree that the obligations of the Tenant under condition 11.1 of the Lease only have effect in respect of those items which are the responsibility of the Tenant and identified as such in the Building Maintenance Policy attached at Appendix 2.
- 3.2 The tenant will maintain all exits and paths of travel in accordance with regulation 1218 of the Building Regulations 2006.
- 3.3 The tenant will not allow any environmental weeds to be planted on the site.
- 3.4 The tenant will not store any rubbish on the site except in council approved garbage and recycling bins.

4. LANDLORD'S FURTHER OBLIGATIONS:

- 4.1 The Landlord will prepare annually an Essential Safety Measures Report in accordance with regulation 1215 of the Building Regulations 2006 and will undertake the servicing of any nominated Essential Safety Measure. A copy of the Essential Safety Measures Report will be provided to the tenant to be retained onsite and available for inspection.
- 4.2 The Landlord will undertake a building condition report at the commencement of the lease and will provide the tenant with a copy of the report. A copy of the Building Condition Report is appended at Appendix 3. The condition report will also list all Asbestos located at the premises to ensure the tenant is aware of the location of all Asbestos.

5. COUNCIL POLICY

The parties agree that Council has the right to require the Tenant to comply with existing or new policies issued or amended by Council from time to time and notified in writing to the Tenant.

6. WORKING WITH CHILDREN CHECKS

- 6.1 This Special Condition applies if the Tenant's activities at the Premises involve persons engaged in 'child related work' within the meaning of the Working with Children Act 2005 (Vic) (WWCA).
- 6.2 Without limiting the Tenant's obligations concerning compliance with all laws and requirements of any authority in connection with the Premises and the Tenant's use and occupation of the Premises, the Tenant must:

- 6.2.1 ensure that all employees and volunteers who are required to apply for a Working with Children Check (WWC) under the WWCA have done so, before working with children at the Premises:
- 6.2.2 provide a copy of the WWC card of each of the Tenant's employees and volunteers working at the Premises to Council, on demand;
- 6.2.3 ensure that any employee or volunteer that is given a negative notice (within the meaning given to that term in the WWCA) does not work with children at the Premises; and
- 6.2.4 subject to Special Condition 6.3, ensure that the information in any WWC of the Tenant's employees and volunteers which is provided to the Council, is kept confidential.
- 6.3 The Tenant agrees that Council may disclose the information in any WWC of the Tenant's employees and volunteers for the purpose of administering or enforcing this Lease or if required by law.

This Special Condition is an essential term of this Lease.

7. CHILD SAFE STANDARDS

- 7.1 This Special Condition applies if the Tenant is:
 - 7.1.1 an applicable entity within the meaning of the Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005 (Vic); and
 - 7.1.2 not otherwise exempt from the requirements of that Act.
- 7.2 For the purposes of this Special Condition, Child Protection Toolkit means the document of that name published by Our Community Pty Ltd, January 2016, ISBN 978–1–876976–58–3.
- 7.3 The Tenant must comply with the Child Safe Standards published pursuant to the Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005 (Vic) (as amended from time to time).
- 7.4 The Tenant acknowledges that the Child Safe Standards can be found at the website http://www.education.vic.gov.au/about/programs/health/protect/Pages/default.aspx (as amended from time to time) and, for the purposes of this Special Condition, the Tenant acknowledges having received a copy of the Child Safe Standards.
- 7.5 Commencing no later than 6 months after the Commencement Date until the end of the Term, the Tenant must, using the Child Protection Toolkit:
 - 7.5.1 implement a child-safe policy or statement of commitment to child safety;
 - 7.5.2 put in place a code of conduct that establishes clear expectations for appropriate behaviour with children;
 - 7.5.3 codify mandatory and voluntary processes for responding to and reporting suspected child abuse; and
 - 7.5.4 implement such other policies and practices as are relevant and appropriate.

This Special Condition is an essential term of this Lease.

APPENDIX ONE (PLAN OF LAND)





APPENDIX TWO

MAINTENANCE POLICY

This schedule will apply notwithstanding alternative provision is contained in the lease.

	Tenant	Council	Comments
Infrastructure			
Structure			
Roof		Full Maintenance	
Gutter and Spouting		Full Maintenance	
External and Internal	Maintain	Replace	
Walls Floor	Maintain	Donloop	
Stumps, footing etc	Maintain	Replace	
Services	IVIAIIIIAIII	Replace	
Electrical wiring	Maintain	Replace	
Plumbing (including	Maintain	Replace	
sewerage)	iviairitairi	Replace	
Sub surface drain pipes	Maintain	Replace	
Water Supply	Full Maintenance	Торіасо	
Drainage service pits	Maintain	Replace	Tenant to keep pit free of
	Walitalii	Торгасс	debris and inspect regularly.
Fittings			
Air conditioning and/ or heating	Full Maintenance		Inspect/service annually
Hot Water Service	Full Maintenance		
Curtains/ drapes/ blinds	Full Maintenance		
Electrical fittings and lights	Full Maintenance		
External Lighting	Full Maintenance		Council to replace external security lighting.
Plumbing fittings (toilet, sink, taps etc)	Full Maintenance		
Floor surfaces and coverings	Full Maintenance		
Fly screens	Full Maintenance		
Plate glass	Full Maintenance		
Windows	Full Maintenance		Council to replace external glass if damaged out of hours / vandalism.
Intercom	Full Maintenance		
Keys and locks	Maintain	Replace	Requires Council authority
Internal wall surfaces (paint, wallpaper and tiling, etc)	Full Maintenance		Paint on 10 year cycle
External wall surfaces	Maintain	Replace	Council to Paint on 10 year cycle
Skylight		Full Maintenance	
Appurtenant fittings or fixtures	Full Maintenance		
Doors	Maintain	Replace External doors only	

	Tenant	Council	Comments
Security system	Full Maintenance		
Fixed whitegoods (eg	Full Maintenance		
stove)			
Other			
Retaining Walls,	Maintain	Replace	
Outdoor steps etc.			
Car park & Driveway		Full maintenance	
Signage	Full Maintenance		
Fences & Gates		Full Maintenance	Inspect annually
Open Space			
Grassed areas		Full Maintenance	Assess fortnightly
Trees		Full Maintenance	Council approval to be sought
			prior to any major tree
			maintenance
Pest Control	Undertake		
Waste removal	Undertake		Weekly
Elements appurtenant	Full Maintenance	Annual safety	
to function (eg.		inspection to	
playground etc.)		Australian Standard	
		for playgrounds	
Insurance			
Damage caused by	Undertake if less	Undertake if greater	
vandalism, storm	than \$250	than \$250	
damage or any other			
insured risk			
Public Liability	Undertake		Hall hirers may be eligible to
			purchase Council's Hall hirer
			insurance
Plate Glass	Undertake		
Building Insurance		Undertake	
Contents Insurance for	Undertake		
all equipment, fixtures			
and fittings			
Essential Services			
Fire extinguishers / fire	Replace if	Full Maintenance	Inspect and maintain to
blankets	discharged or		Australian Standard
	stolen	E 11 h A	
Fire service levy		Full Maintenance	
Emergency exits		Full Maintenance	Inspect and maintain to
	E HAAT		Australian Standard
Smoke detectors	Full Maintenance		

Definitions:

Maintain: Clean and maintain. Keep in good condition. Inspect. Service.

Maintain to Australian Standard

Replace: Fix if broken. Replace or Repair. Full Maintenance: Clean, maintain, repair, replace.

Blank: No Maintenance

Undertake: Carry out specified activity

The comments column is provided for the benefit of the tenant. This column may be used to clarify the maintenance responsibilities that relate to a particular site.

The replacement of certain items may be dependent upon budget provisions.

Approved contractors

If the tenant is required to engage contractors to perform maintenance tasks for which the tenant is responsible, Council, as landlord, will only approve the use of contractors who are qualified, authorised &/or licensed in accordance with relevant standards and codes.

APPENDIX THREE BUILDING CONDITION REPORT



Building Conditions Report

Hoddles Creek Hall 630 Gembrook-Launching Place Road Survey Date: 27/03/2019 BuildingNo: 492048 **Building Name:** Edwin Spencer Burr Reserve *Type:* Halls and Community Centres Hoddles Creek 3139 **Fitout** Site Services Nominated Safety Measures ✓ Electricity Air Conditioning Systems Fire Mains Split System 2.8 General Building Condition: Reverse Cycle Natural Gas Air Pressurisation Systems Fire Protective Coverings **WHERE CONDITION IS: Evaporative Cooler** ✓ Lp Gas Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Fire Rated Access Panels Fire Rated Control Joints 1=Excellent, 2=Good, 3=Fair, 4=Poor, 5=Failed Cassette Sewer **Emergency Lifts** Ducted ✓ Septic Fire Rated Materials Applied **Emergency Lighting** Wood Heater Treatment Plant **Emergency Power Supply** Fire Resisting Shafts **Construction Details** Oil Heater Telephone **Emergency Warning And Interc** Fire Resisting Structures Unknown ✓ Wall Furnace Mains Water ✓ Exit Doors Fire Shutters Electric Heater ✓ Tank Water ✓ Exit Signs Fire Windows Substructure Switchboard Storm Water Fire Brigade Connections Lightweight Construction ✓ Fusebox Mechanical Ventilation Syste Grease Trap Fire Control Centres **Fabric** Carpet Fire Control Panels Occupant Warning System Security System Roof ✓ Vinyl Monitored Security Fire Curtains ✓ Paths Of Travel To Road ✓ Strip Flooring CCTV ✓ Paths Of Travel To Exits Fire Dampers Other Building Details: Penetrations To Fire Rated Tiles **Backflow Prevention** Fire Detection And Alarm Sys Structures **Disabled Facilities** Auto Doors Fire Doors Interceptor Trap Smoke Alarms **Disabled Access** ✓ Smoke Detector ✓ Fire Extinguishers Portable Insulation **Smoke Control Measures** Safety Switch ✓ Security Lighting ✓ Fire Blanket Fire Hose Reels **Building Contact Details:** Smoke Doors **Roof Anchors Boundary Fencing** Generator Fire Hydrants Smoke Vents Ladder Bracket Non Scalable Fencing ✓ Fire Indices For Materials Sprinkler Systems Floor Area 205 m² Light Sensor Fire Isolated Passageways WHERE Priority Is: Stairwell Pressurisation Sys Contents Value \$0 Chemical Storage Fire Isolated Lift Shafts Static Water Storage A = 7 Days, B = 30 Days, C = 270 Day, D = 360 Days **Building Value** \$383.333 Fire Isolated Ramps E = Program maintenance requirements Vehicular Access For Large I ES = Servicing or repair requiements to essential services Fire Isolated Stairs R = Element/s or components not physically defective but Warning Systems-Lifts desirable to upgrade Comment:

Works Identified	Priorit	y Priority Notes	Management Responsibility	Trade	Budget Date Checked	Expected Completion Date	General Condition	External Reference	Defect Number	Inspection Batch
Accessibility - Carparking Facilities Install disabled parking and access[Builder]	D	Vital action required (within 12 months)	Council	Carpenter	\$25,000.00 12/10/2017	07/10/2018	Poor	129550	160907	77232
		Subto	otal Accessibility - Carpar	king Facilities	\$25,000.00					

Building Conditions Report

Building Exterior - Walls											
Remove asbestos cladding, reclad and paint in new colours[Builder]	D	Vital action required (within 12 months	Council	Carpenter	\$100,000.00	12/10/2017	07/10/2018	Poor	129553	160908	77232
			Subtotal Building Exterior -	Walls	\$100,000.00						
Building Interior - Floor Finishes											
Programmed sand and resurface timber strip flooring[Floor Polisher]	Α	Revisit and inspect after 5 years	Council	Carpenter	\$19,000.00	12/10/2017	27/03/2027	Poor	129548	160909	77232
Programmed replacement floor coverings - vinyl[Floor Coverings]	Α	Revisit and inspect after 5 years	Council	Carpenter	\$7,000.00	12/10/2017	26/03/2030	Poor	105153	160910	77232
			Subtotal Building Interior - I	Floor Finishes	\$26,000.00						
Painting - Exterior		B	0 "	D : .	Фо ооо оо	40/40/0047	00/00/0004		105115	100011	77000
Programmed repaint external surfaces.[Painter]	В	Recommend action between 2 to 5 years		Painter	\$6,000.00	12/10/2017	26/03/2021	Poor	105145	160911	77232
Painting - Interior			Subtotal Painting - Exterior		\$6,000.00						
Programmed repaint internal surfaces.[Painter]	В	Recommend action between 2 to 5 years	ars Council	Painter	\$7,000.00	12/10/2017	26/03/2022	Poor	105149	160912	77232
	_		Subtotal Painting - Interior		\$7,000.00	,	_0/00/_0	. 55.		.000.2	
					<i>\$7,</i> 00000						
Electrical Services											
Lighting-External/Internal - E/1045 - Essential Services;Exit Signs;	ES	H-Jun,Dec			\$0.00	04/12/2017		Satisfactory	Υ		77217
External Fabric											
Windows & Doors - E/2210 - Essential Services;Exit Doors;	ES	Q-Mar,Jun,Sep,Dec			\$0.00	04/12/2017		Satisfactory	Y		77216
E'. G											
Fire Services Fire Services - E/1046 - Essential Services; Fire Extinguisher-Portable;	ES	H-Mar,Sep, Level 2 passed - 0002638	589		\$0.00	15/09/2017		Satisfactory	Υ		77205
The correct Little Localital Correct, the Example of Contract,		11 mai, eop, 2010/2 padda - 0002000			Ψ0.00	10/00/2017		Callelactory	•		77200
Electrical Services											
Distribution Boards - C/1071 - Electrical;Switchboard;	Е	Modern with RCD			\$2,000.00	12/10/2017		Satisfactory	N		77220
			Subtotal Electrical Services		\$2,000.00						
Exterior Works											
Misc C/1072 - SubStructure;Stumps;Timber stumps	E	Concrete stumps			\$35,000.00	12/10/2017		Good	N		77220
			Subtotal Exterior Works		\$35,000.00						
Fortunal Education											
External Fabric External Walls - C/3296 - Building Exterior; Walls; Asbestos clad	E	Asbestos clad			\$100,000.00	12/10/2017		Poor	N		77220
Windows & Doors - C/3304 - Building Exterior; Windows; Aluminium	E	Aluminium			\$20,000.00	12/10/2017		Satisfactory	N		77220
External Walls - C/3298 - Painting;Exterior;	E	Previously painted			\$6,000.00	12/10/2017		Good	N		77220
<u>. </u>		••	Subtotal External Fabric		\$126,000.00	-		-			
					•						
Interior Finishes											
Ceiling Finishes - C/3297 - Building Interior; Ceilings; Plaster	E	Plaster			\$30,000.00	12/10/2017		Satisfactory	N		77220
Floor Finishes - C/3301 - Building Interior; Floor; Timber hardwood	E	Timber hardwood			\$60,000.00	12/10/2017		Satisfactory	N		77220

Building Conditions Report

Floor Finishes - C/3302 - Building Interior; Floor Finishes;	Е	Varnished floors		\$6,000.00	12/10/2017	Poor	N	77220
Fixtures & Fittings - C/3300 - Building Interior;Kitchen;	E	Modern - Laminte		\$20,000.00	12/10/2017	Good	N	77220
Interior Walls - C/3295 - Building Interior;Walls;Plaster/Timber	E	Plaster/Timber		\$40,000.00	12/10/2017	Satisfactory	N	77220
Wall Finishes - C/3299 - Painting;Interior;	Е	Previously painted		\$7,000.00	12/10/2017	Good	N	77220
			Subtotal Interior Finishes	\$163,000.00				
Mechanical Services								
Heating System - C/1070 - Mechanical; Gas Heating; LP Gas	Е	LP Gas x 2 bottels and cage at rear		\$10,000.00	12/10/2017	Satisfactory	N	77220
			Subtotal Mechanical Services	\$10,000.00				
Plumbing								
Sanitary Plumbing - C/3303 - Building Interior;Amenities;Male and Female	E	Male and Female		\$40,000.00	12/10/2017	Satisfactory	N	77220
			Subtotal Plumbing	\$40,000.00				
Asbestos								
Asbestos - A/138 - External Wall External wall lining cement sheeting	Е	Positive Label, leave and maintain (Ris	sk = 3)	\$1,850.00	30/04/2002	29/04/2021 Good	13122/A262	
Asbestos - A/1487 - Lining Switchboard	Е	Positive Leave & maintain, labelled to	UMS protocol. (Risk = 3)	\$450.00	30/04/2002	29/04/2021 Good	21701/150	
Asbestos - A/139 - Roof eaves Roof eaves lining cement sheeting	E	Positive Leave & maintain, labelled to	UMS protocol. (Risk = 3)	\$650.00	30/04/2002	29/04/2021 Good	13122/A263	
			Subtotal Asbestos	\$2,950.00				
			Building Total	\$542,950.00	-			

Notes

- 1. Budget = Estimate/Guide for planning purposes only.
- 2. Expected Completion Date = Guide only, subject to availability of Council funding and prioritisation of Works.

Priority A = 7 Days - (Works required immediately or as soon as possible to meet statutory requirements, to ensure health/safety of building occupants and to prevent disruption to building activities)

Priority B = 30 Days - (Works the affect the operational capacity of the building and those which are likely to lead to serious deterioration and higher future cost of repair)

Priority C = 270 Days - (Works that have minimal affect on the operational capacity of the asset but desirable to maintain environmental quality of the assets and its surroundings)

Priority D = 360 Days - (Works that can be deferred beyond one year and be re-assessed at a future date)

Priority E = User/Auto Input - (Program maintenance requirements)

Priority ES = Auto Inputs - (Servicing or repair requiements to existing installations of Essential Services)

Priority R = User Input - (Building Element/s or components not physically defective but desirable to upgrade)